
 
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE  Contact:  Jane Creer / Ann Redondo  

Committee Administrator 
  Direct : 020-8379- 4093 / 4095 
Thursday, 12th November, 2009 at 7.30 pm  Tel: 020-8379-1000 

 Ext:  4093 / 4095 
 Fax: 020-8379-3177 
 Textphone: 020 8379 4419 
 E-mail:  ann.redondo@enfield.gov.uk 

             jane.creer@enfield.gov.uk 

Venue:  Conference Room 
The Civic Centre, Silver Street, 
Enfield, Middlesex, EN1 3XA 

 Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk 

 
 
MEMBERS 
Councillors : Alan Barker (Chairman), Don Delman (Vice-Chairman), 
Jayne Buckland, Lee Chamberlain, Andreas Constantinides, Peter Fallart, 
Jonas Hall, Ahmet Hasan, Chris Joannides, Donald McGowan, Toby Simon, Dino 
Lemonides, Kieran McGregor and Anne-Marie Pearce 
 

 
N.B. Any member of the public interested in attending the meeting 

should ensure that they arrive promptly at 7.15pm. 
Seating is limited and will be allocated on a first come first served basis. 

 
Involved parties may request to make a deputation to the Committee by 

contacting the committee administrator before 12:00pm on 11/11/09. 
 

 
AGENDA – PART 1 

 
1. WELCOME / LEGAL STATEMENT / CHAIRMAN'S OPENING 

STATEMENT   
 
2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
3. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  (Pages 1 - 2) 
 
 Members of the Planning Committee are invited to identify any personal or 

prejudicial interests relevant to items on the agenda. Please refer to the 
guidance note attached to the agenda.  
 

4. MINUTES OF PLANNING PANEL 26 FEBRUARY 2009  (Pages 3 - 12) 
 
 To receive for information the minutes of the Planning Panel meeting held on 

Thursday 26 February 2009. 

Public Document Pack



 
5. REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING AND 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION  (REPORT NO. 123) : APPLICATION 
REFERENCE TP/09/0089 - SOUTHGATE COLLEGE, HIGH STREET, 
LONDON, N14 6BS  (Pages 13 - 48) 

 
 Application submitted by Southgate College for redevelopment to provide 

new education facilities, involving erection of a part 4, part 6-storey block, 
refurbishment of existing 6-storey building, the erection of a 2-storey block 
incorporating the public library and erection of a detached 2-storey motor 
vehicle workshop, together with provision of ancillary plant / infrastructure on 
roofs, associated car parking and construction of access routes via Ashfield 
Parade, Blagdens Lane and High Street in connection with consolidation of 
College on High Street site.  (Outline application – access and layout). 
 
Please note that a schedule of the proposed conditions was sent to follow. 
 

6. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
 If necessary, to consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the 

Local Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting 
for any items of business moved to part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in those 
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006).  
(There is no part 2 agenda) 
 

 
 
 



 

DEC/JB/JK/1 

YES 

NO 

NO 

YES 

NO 

DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART - QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF 
 
 

What matters are being 
discussed at the meeting? 

Do any relate to my interests whether 
already registered or not? 

Is a particular matter close to me? 
 
Does it affect: 
� me or my partner; 
� my relatives or their partners; 
� my friends or close associates; 
� either me, my family or close associates: 

• job and business; 

• employers, firms you or they are a partner of and companies 
you or they are a Director of 

• or them to any position; 

• corporate bodies in which you or they have a shareholding of 
more than £25,000 (nominal value); 

� my entries in the register of interests 
 
more than it would affect the majority of people in the ward affected by the 
decision, or in the authority’s area or constituency? 

P
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
in

te
re

s
t 

You can participate 
in the meeting and 
vote 

Does the matter affect your financial interests or 
relate to a licensing, planning or other regulatory 
matter; and 
Would a member of the public (knowing the 
relevant facts) reasonably think that your 
personal interest was so significant that it would 
prejudice your judgement of public interest? 

P
re

ju
d

ic
ia

l 
in

te
re

s
t 

NO 

YES 

YES 

You may have a 
personal interest 

Note: If in any doubt about a potential interest, members are asked to seek advice from 
Democratic Services in advance of the meeting. 

 

Do the public have speaking rights at the meeting?  
 

You should declare the interest and 
withdraw from the meeting by leaving 
the room.  You cannot speak or vote 
on the matter and must not seek to 
improperly influence the decision. 

You should declare the interest but can remain 
in the meeting to speak.  Once you have 
finished speaking (or the meeting decides you 
have finished - if earlier) you must withdraw from 
the meeting by leaving the room.   

YES 

You may have a 
prejudicial interest 

Declare your personal interest in the matter.  You can 
remain in meeting, speak and vote unless the interest is 
also prejudicial; or 
If your interest arises solely from your membership of, 
or position of control or management on any other 
public body or body to which you were nominated by 
the authority e.g. Governing Body, ALMO, you only 
need declare your personal interest if and when you 
speak on the matter, again providing it is not prejudicial. 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



 

PLANNING PANEL - 26.2.2009 

 

- 738 - 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PLANNING PANEL 
HELD ON THURSDAY, 26 FEBRUARY 2009 

 
COUNCILLORS  
 
PRESENT Alan Barker, Andreas Constantinides, Jonas Hall, Chris 

Joannides, Dino Lemonides, Henry Pipe and Toby Simon 
 
OFFICERS: Julian Jackson (Head of Development Control), Andy Higham 

(Area Planning Manager) and Steve Jaggard (Transportation 
Planning) Jane Creer (Secretary) and Ann Redondo 
(Secretary) 

  
 
Also Attending: Applicant / Agent Representatives: 

David Byrne (Principal, Southgate College) 
Mary Power (Savills PLC – Planning Consultants) 
Stephen Blowers (Dyer - Architects) 
Tanya Ring (Dyer - Architects) 
Tim Smith (Structa – Transport Consultants) 
Ward Councillors: 
Councillor Robert Hayward (Southgate Ward Councillor) 
Councillor Edward Smith (Southgate Ward Councillor) 
Councillor Terence Smith (Southgate Ward Councillor) 
Member of Parliament: 
David Burrowes MP (Enfield Southgate Constituency) 
And approximately 100 members of the public 

 
1112   
OPENING  
 
The Chairman welcomed all attendees to the Planning Panel meeting. He 
explained that the purpose of this meeting was a fact-finding exercise for the 
Planning Committee, seven representatives of which were here tonight. The 
Panel Members, the applicant and agents, and the officers from the Council’s 
Planning Department introduced themselves. 
 
1113   
OFFICER'S SUMMARY OF THE PLANNING ISSUES  
 
Julian Jackson, Head of Development Control, clarified that the purpose of a 
Planning Panel meeting was not to determine the application. A decision on 
the application would be made by the full Planning Committee at a later date. 
This Planning Panel would give local residents and interested parties the 
opportunity to raise questions directly with the applicant and agents. Planning 
Panel meetings were held in relation to complex major planning applications 
in the borough, and the Council welcomed attendees’ feedback on the 
process and appreciated it if people could take the time to fill in a short 
evaluation form and hand it to officers at the end of the meeting. 
 

Agenda Item 4Page 3



 

PLANNING PANEL - 26.2.2009 

 

- 739 - 

1114   
PRESENTATION BY THE APPLICANT / AGENT  
 
3.1  David Byrne, Southgate College Principal, advised that the current 
accommodation was holding back the college. The buildings were inefficient 
for a modern learning environment, not just for 16-19 year-olds but also for 
older students and evening class participants. The college also needed to be 
able to compete. Plans had been drawn up with a design team and he 
believed they had proposed a scheme that worked. 
 
3.2  Further details were provided by Stephen Blowers, the main design 
architect, illustrated by projected plans and drawings, including: 
•  It would be important to build the new campus while keeping the old 
campus running, so it would be done in phases, with a restricted amount of 
demolition at the beginning. 
•  The college was looking to take ownership of the land occupied currently by 
the public library. During construction, the library facilities could be moved 
temporarily. A replacement public library was included in the scheme, but if 
the Council found alternative accommodation for a library in Southgate, that 
element would be removed. 
•  The college wanted a greater presence in the High Street and ability for the 
public to enter and to access the hair and beauty salons and the restaurant. 
•  Phase 1 would be a building next to the Post Office with a public library on 
the ground floor. This would be completed before the construction of the rest 
of the college. 
•  The main tall block in the college would be retained but clad with more 
modern materials and made more sustainable. 
•  Public consultation had taken place in December 2008 and concerns raised 
had been picked up and changes made to the scheme. The block nearest the 
High Street cottages had been reduced in height and the building line had 
been moved so as to be in line with the cottages. 
•  English Heritage had also made similar comments and the mass and height 
of the buildings close to the cottages had been amended to soften the college 
appearance at that location. 
•  Access was a key issue. The aim was to facilitate a dispersal strategy to 
remove the pressure at the junctions. Advice from highway consultants was 
that there was plenty of capacity, but the applicant wanted a solution that 
would work for everybody so a number of options were being looked at. 
•  The majority of staff arrived at the college between 7.00 to 9.00 am and 
they could be permitted to enter via Ashfield Parade during those hours. 
•  Three options relating to access would be included in the application put to 
the Planning Committee to allow them to decide which was best. 
•  Green space within the college was proposed to be increased from 1900 m² 
to 1975 m² plus an 800 m² public square and there would be greenery from 
the High Street to the front doors. 
 
3.3  In summary, David Byrne reported that the present college buildings were 
very costly to maintain and needed to be more sustainable and to offer full 
disabled access. The college wanted to be more successful and to be a major 

Page 4



 

PLANNING PANEL - 26.2.2009 

 

- 740 - 

contributor to the local and wider London economy, and to make a significant 
difference to all of their learners. 
 
1115   
QUESTIONS BY PANEL MEMBERS  
 
4.1  Councillor Pipe asked about the relationship between the proposed 
development and the houses and listed buildings in High Street,  and how it 
would be ensured that visual intrusion would be kept to a minimum. 
 
Stephen Blowers advised that the library block would be brought back to the 
building line of the cottages, and at 2 storeys would not be much higher than 
the cottages. Also, once the trees were mature they would add to the 
frontage. 
 
4.2  Councillor Constantinides asked about the adequacy of solutions to 
manage traffic movements and about sufficient car parking for staff. 
 
Tim Smith confirmed that the college currently provided 272 car parking 
spaces and it was proposed to reduce the number of spaces, which would 
reduce the total traffic generated by the site. The college was preparing a 
travel plan to make itself more sustainable and that would also reduce the 
numbers travelling by car. The college redevelopment would not generate 
more traffic but the cars would be dispersed through more entrances. 
 
4.3  Councillor Hall asked about timescales for the construction and what 
reassurance could be given to local residents about resulting disruption. 
 
Mary Power clarified that the scheme would be done in phases and would be 
fully complete in 2013. During the construction, the college must stay open 
and teach normally. It was unavoidable there would be some impact, but the 
Council would impose strict conditions to limit hours when construction work 
would be allowed, and agree a construction methodology plan. The college 
wanted to maintain a good working relationship with the local community and 
would ensure there were contact points for people to raise any concerns 
directly with them. 
 
1116   
QUESTIONS BY WARD COUNCILLORS AND MPS  
 
5.1  Councillor E Smith commented on the local consensus that Southgate 
College had not always been considered a good neighbour in the past and 
asked if this development would improve the behaviour or calibre of students 
likely to come to the college in the future.  
 
David Byrne responded that a great deal of good work went on in the college, 
and particularly since he had become the new Principal he and his 
management team had made efforts to meet individuals with concerns and 
would continue to do so. He believed that Southgate College students had not 
always felt welcomed in the local area, and that there was little for students 

Page 5



 

PLANNING PANEL - 26.2.2009 

 

- 741 - 

within the college at the moment. This development would raise standards of 
accommodation and by improving the internal environment students would be 
kept engaged throughout the day. Entry requirements would be on a par with 
other beacon colleges. Students causing anti-social behaviour were dealt 
with, and in some cases expelled. He also wanted to work with other 
authorities, including Ashmole School and the local police, to agree a 
Southgate plan. 
 
5.2  Councillor R Hayward read a statement from David Burrowes, MP for 
Enfield Southgate, who sent his apologies for late arrival at the meeting. The 
MP had been contacted by a number of constituents about the application. He 
did support the principle of redevelopment; however there was a need to be 
sensitive to nearby properties. New buildings should be appropriate in size, 
and in keeping with the character of Southgate. He was pleased that revisions 
had been made to the plans in recognition of many of the concerns raised. 
 
5.3  Councillor R Hayward commented that he hoped that the Planning 
Committee would take the decision that Blagdens Lane should not be used as 
an access to the college. He also wished to raise concerns that the car 
parking provision would be inadequate, that students would be coming in from 
outside Enfield, that students gathered to smoke in Blagdens Lane and the 
surrounding area, disappointment that a public library was proposed within the 
college rather than in Chase Side, and worries that it would take a long time 
for the site to look good and mature trees should be put in at the beginning. 
 
David Byrne stated that since his arrival in January, residents would have 
seen a dedicated officer patrolling and a decrease in numbers of students 
loitering in the area. Littering was not purely linked to Southgate College 
students and he wanted to meet with local businesses etc to come up with 
wider litter plans. He would also be happy to meet with anyone concerned 
about anti-social behaviour, and he had forums ongoing with residents. Car 
parking provision was being deliberately reduced and he was looking at 
charging policies and introducing a cycling policy. He explained that the 
funding methodology was capping student recruitment and there would be 
only moderate increases in student numbers; no more than a 2% increase 
year on year. He would pass the comments regarding the trees back to the 
design team. 
 
1117   
OPEN SESSION - QUESTIONS AND VIEWS FROM THE FLOOR  
 
6.1  The Chairman invited attendees to put forward their comments and 
questions, but these should please be kept to planning issues. Andy Higham 
explained that issues material to the consideration of the planning application 
included: intensification of use, impact on the amenities of neighbouring 
homes and setting of listed buildings, access and traffic issues, etc. 
 
The comments and questions and responses received are grouped into 
themes below. 
 

Page 6



 

PLANNING PANEL - 26.2.2009 

 

- 742 - 

6.2  Size and Scale and Appearance of the Development 
 
a.  A number of residents supported the principle of redevelopment of the 
college, but questioned the scale and height of buildings, particularly the 
proposed 4 and 6-storey blocks. It was also understood that English Heritage 
had concerns about the looming nature of the development. 
 
b.  Mary Power confirmed that the front block would not be as high as first 
proposed, as a compromise on the High Street. The rear building behind the 
listed cottages was no nearer to them than present buildings. The proposals 
were considered the most appropriate and efficient use of the site. If an 
alternative location was found for the public library there may be an 
opportunity to look at reducing the scale of the buildings to the rear of the site. 
 
c.  A resident of Burleigh Gardens and member of the Southgate Community 
Anchor Group raised concerns about the aesthetics and looming scale of the 
proposed development. He wished the buildings could be more attractive to 
look at, and more cutting edge architecturally. 
 
d.  Stephen Blowers responded that this was an outline application only at this 
stage, regarding general layout and massing, and the team were still 
developing the architecture detail, materials, etc. 
 
e.  A resident of a listed building next to Southgate College felt that the 
proposed development would have a massive effect. The front 2-storey 
building would also have plant machinery on the roof and would be quite 
imposing and close, while the rear buildings would be increased in mass and 
height so that his cottage would feel surrounded. This was not the right form 
of redevelopment and the design should be more sympathetic to Southgate. 
 
f.  A resident highlighted that the college was close to two Conservation Areas 
and to a number of listed buildings. She felt the proposed buildings would be 
overbearing and would overlook private gardens and houses, and would not 
be in keeping with the area. She also had concerns about how the front part 
would be kept secure at night and possibilities that young people could gather 
there after dark and make the area feel unsafe for people coming back from 
the Tube station in the evening. 
 
g.  Mary Power reiterated that new buildings would be no closer to residents 
than currently, though they would be higher. The existing 6-storey building 
would remain and it was considered that proposed developments would have 
no greater impact. 
 
h.  David Byrne welcomed the open space provision in front of the college and 
wanted to work with the local community to make the best use of it. It was also 
in the college’s interest to protect its own estate. Behind the green space 
would be a lockable gate, which would be sympathetic to the street scene, 
and the college would be shut down at the close of business and at 
weekends. There would be a smart card system for the car park as well as a 

Page 7



 

PLANNING PANEL - 26.2.2009 

 

- 743 - 

gated frontage and these strategies would be employed for Ashfield Parade 
as well. 
 
6.3  Traffic and Access Arrangements 
 
a.  A resident of Burleigh Parade raised concerns about any increase in traffic 
to a proposed entrance in Ashfield Parade, as this was a very narrow road 
with a narrow pavement and garages to the side. Other residents added that 
the traffic issues there were worsening and the Council should look at the 
overall situation and make improvements. Attendees also believed that if the 
roundabout and Chase Side were improved for traffic there would not be 
congestion problems around the college. 
 
b.  Tim Smith confirmed that the college currently used Ashfield Parade as an 
exit, and a number of access options were being considered. 
 
c.  Residents were concerned that Blagdens Lane also had very narrow 
pavements. 
 
d.  Tim Smith advised that a Blagdens Lane entrance was being considered 
as a vehicular access only, not pedestrian. 
 
e.  A resident of Blagdens Lane pointed out that there were residential flats 
opposite the proposed entrance and had concerns that the college was being 
increased in scale yet parking was being reduced. There was restricted 
parking around Blagdens Lane and people would use the forecourt of the flats 
to park illegally in residents’ spaces. 
 
f.  Tim Smith responded that the college was looking to promote public 
transport, cycling and car sharing, and that there would be no student parking 
on the campus. They were also looking at alternatives of using High Street 
and Ashfield Parade to enter the site. 
 
6.4  Alternative Suggestions for Redevelopment 
 
a.  Residents asked why the college could not rather build over the car park at 
the rear of the site. A number of attendees asserted that it was feasible to 
build over a Tube line and would be worth the cost. 
 
b.  Mary Power advised that the presence of the London Underground lines 
restricted the depth of foundations in that area and that safety legislation must 
not be infringed. There was also a need to consider proximity to residents’ 
boundaries on the Barnet side.  
 
c.  Stephen Blowers confirmed that their structural engineers advised a 
restriction to no more than 2-storey buildings above the Tube line. Such 
building would also be so expensive that it would not be allowed by the 
funding body, the Learning and Skills Council. There was also a phasing 
explanation why they were not proposing building on the car park, and it was 

Page 8



 

PLANNING PANEL - 26.2.2009 

 

- 744 - 

important to have a front-facing element to the development to make the 
college more integrated in the town and welcoming to the public. 
 
d.  Residents suggested using the Minchenden site for car parking. 
 
e.  Mary Power stated that it was the ethos of the application to ensure that 
the college could sustain itself on one site, and would eventually dispose of 
the Minchenden site to achieve value. It would be important to introduce 
sustainable transport choices and seek to reduce car use, in line with national 
and local policy. 
 
6.5  Public Library 
 
a.  Councillor E Smith expressed his concerns at the proposal to incorporate 
the public library within the new development. Council policy was to build new 
libraries in shopping centres and main streets, and the Council had made a 
commitment that the public library would be moved to Chase Side subject to 
finding suitable premises. 
 
b.  Mary Power clarified that the present college contract bound them to 
accommodate an alternative facility to ensure the public library was not lost to 
the local community, and if a new library site was found, the college proposals 
would be amended. 
 
c.  Residents also raised concerns that the public library would be demolished 
first, and how long it would be closed. 
 
6.6  Cost 
 
a.  A resident asked what was the budget for the project, and where the 
money was coming from. 
 
b.  David Byrne advised that procedures were set out in very strict terms by 
the Learning and Skills Council. Money had to be borrowed under current 
government guidelines and the college would be expected to realise any 
assets that could contribute to the scheme. The bulk of the money would 
come from the taxpayer via the Learning and Skills Council, which would 
decide on the scheme and allocate funds. It was not possible to give an exact 
cost but the outline estimate was around £80 million. The college was 
required to undertake a cost plan to be verified by the Learning and Skills 
Council and national committee. 
 
c.  A resident commented that the scheme seemed to involve a lot of money 
and work for a relatively small increase in student numbers. 
 
d.  David Byrne emphasised the importance of quality not quantity, plus the 
rules would not permit the college to grow in a major way. They wanted to 
improve the resources for their learners, and to improve the street scene. 
 
6.7  Students 

Page 9



 

PLANNING PANEL - 26.2.2009 

 

- 745 - 

 
a.  A resident pointed out that, according to the Office of National Statistics, 
from 2010 to 2020 there was expected to be a decline in the size of the 
student age group. 
 
b.  David Byrne advised that Southgate College belonged to the 14-19 
strategy partnership within Enfield, which planned cross-borough provision 
and courses, and they wanted to excel in the training offered and to attract 
students from around Enfield. 
 
c.  A resident of Blagdens Close commented that students were often hanging 
around surrounding streets in the mornings, and pavements were congested. 
She felt the main objective should be a student campus to provide amenities 
for them, and questioned the need for an interface with residents, who would 
prefer the car park in front and buildings at the back. Other attendees also felt 
that bringing the college buildings to the front would increase congestion by 
students who could be intimidating in large groups. 
 
d.  David Byrne responded that vocational training was fundamental to the 
college’s work and it was important to give students a realistic working 
environment. Students had contributed to discussions about what they wanted 
to see in the redevelopment for future generations and would have a chance 
to be involved in building their own environment. The majority of students did 
not smoke, and they were concerned about sustainability. There would be a 
smoking area within the college site and a better and more comfortable 
environment inside for all the students.  
 
e.  Stephen Blowers confirmed that there would be green external space 
before the college entrance and some way back from the pavement. There 
would also be an atrium at the central heart of the college as an interactive 
environment for the students, incorporating a refectory and internet cafes so 
he did not believe there would be congestion on the pavements. 
 
6.8  Legal Issues 
 
a.  A resident of Blagdens Close commented that she had been in 
correspondence with Council Planning officers a number of years ago in 
relation to ‘White Ladies’ in Blagdens Lane and recalled a clause stating that 
Southgate College could not be entered from Blagdens Lane. She also 
recalled the difficulties faced by residents during the construction of new flats 
in Blagdens Close. 
 
b.  Andy Higham agreed to look at the permissions and conditions and any 
legal agreements. He was aware of construction access concerns. He would 
take into account all objections on file. 
 
1118   
CLOSE OF MEETING  
 

Page 10



 

PLANNING PANEL - 26.2.2009 

 

- 746 - 

7.1 The Chairman reminded attendees that the consultation period for this 
application ran until 6/3/09 and comments should be sent to the Council 
Planning Department, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield, EN1 3XE or email 
address: Development.control@enfield.gov.uk. 
 
7.2  Andy Higham confirmed that all who wrote in would be notified of the 
Planning Committee date and any consultation on revised access proposals. 
 
7.3  The Chairman thanked David Byrne for his offer to meet with anyone 
concerned about behaviour of students on or off campus. 
 
7.4  The Chairman thanked everyone for their comments and questions: these 
would be fed back into the system. It was likely that the application would be 
determined at the Planning Committee meeting scheduled for 30/4/09, 7.30 
pm at Enfield Civic Centre. 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



 - 1 - 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2009/2010 - REPORT NO 123 
 

 
COMMITTEE: 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 
12.11.2009 
 
REPORT OF: 
Assistant Director, Planning 
and Environmental Protection 
 
Contact Officer: 
Andy Higham Tel: 020 8379 3848 
 
 
5.1 PLANNING APPLICATIONS AND APPLICATIONS TO DISPLAY 

ADVERTISEMENTS  DEC 
 
 On the Schedules attached to this report I set out my recommendations in 

respect of planning applications and applications to display advertisements.  I 
also set out in respect of each application a summary of any representations 
received and any later observations will be reported verbally at your meeting. 

 
 Background Papers 
 

(1) Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 states that the 
Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the 
development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any 
other material considerations.  Section 54A of that Act, as inserted by 
the Planning and Compensation Act 1991, states that where in making 
any determination under the Planning Acts, regard is to be had to the 
development, the determination shall be made in accordance with the 
plan unless the material considerations indicate otherwise.  The 
development plan for the London Borough of Enfield is the Unitary 
Development Plan (UDP). 

 
(2) Other background papers are those contained within the file, the 

reference number of which is given in the heading to each application. 
 
 
 

ITEM 5 AGENDA - PART 1 

SUBJECT - 

 

MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS 

Agenda Item 5Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING COMMITTEE - 12th November 2009 

Page 15



© Crown copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Enfield.
License No LA086363, 2003

Scale 1/2500 Date 2/11/2009

TP/09/0089

Centre = 529636 E 194034 N

Page 16



Application Number:  TP/09/0089 Ward:  Southgate       
Date of Registration:  23rd January 2009 

Contact:  Andy Higham 3848 

Location: SOUTHGATE COLLEGE, HIGH STREET, LONDON, N14 6BS 

Proposal: Redevelopment to provide new education facilities, involving erection of a part 4, part 
6-storey block, refurbishment of existing 6-storey building, the erection of a 2-storey block 
incorporating the public library and erection of a detached 2-storey motor vehicle workshop, 
together with provision of ancillary plant/infrastructure on roofs, associated car parking and 
construction of access routes via Ashfield Parade, Blagdens Lane and High Street in connection 
with consolidation of College on High Street site.  (Outline application - access and layout). 

Applicant Name & Address:

Southgate College 
C/O AGENT 

Agent Name & Address:

Ms Mary Power, Savills PLC 
20, Grosvenor Hill 
London
W1K 3HQ 

Recommendation

That Members resolve to GRANT outline planning permission and that subject to  

a) referral to the Mayor and confirmation that no objection being raised; and  
b) the completion of a S106 Agreement  to secure the items identified in the report 

the Head of Development Services be authorised to grant outline planning permission subject to 
the following conditions 

(a schedule of the proposed conditions to be circulated shortly) 

Site and Surroundings 

Southgate College is situated to the south of Southgate town centre and its associated 
Conservation Area. It presently occupies two sites either side of the High Street: the Main 
campus to the west and the Minchenden campus to the east. The application site relates to the 
Main campus which contains a range of buildings of varied height from two storey to six storey, 
generally of 1960’s and 1970’s construction. A feature of the site within the street scene is the 
open landscaped area abutting the High Street frontage. 

The site is bounded by mixed commercial and residential uses to the north and north eastern 
boundaries. To the south and south eastern boundaries are the residential properties of Blagdens 
Lane and the Grade II listed properties of No 107 – 117 High Street. The western boundary abuts 
the Borough boundary with Barnet beyond which are residential properties on Oxford Avenue.  

Page 17



The application site also encompasses the site of the existing Southgate Library, which is a single 
storey building fronting High Street. 

There are existing access points from High Street, Blagdens Lane and Ashfield Parade and there 
are presently 272 parking spaces available to the College: 200 on the High Street campus and 72 
on the Minchenden campus. 

Proposal

Outline planning permission is sought to establish the principle of redeveloping the site to improve 
the College facilities and involves the consolidation of College onto High Street campus.  

The proposal involves the refurbishment of existing 6-storey building and the construction of a 
linked part 4, part 6-storey block, the construction of a 4 storey block projecting forward toward 
High Street along the northern boundary and a 2-storey block incorporating the public library 
projecting forward along the southern boundary adjacent to No. 117 and erection of a detached 2-
storey motor vehicle workshop in the south eastern corner together with the provision of ancillary 
plant/infrastructure on the roof of the aforementioned buildings. This equates to 24,000sq.m of 
gross internal area and represents an increase of 1593 sq.m on the existing.  

The existing Southgate library with its own 11 parking spaces would be demolished and 
incorporated into the new two storey element of the scheme 

The proposal also includes the construction of a new access onto Blagdens Lane and High Street 
and the reuse of the existing access onto Ashfield Parade. Parking provision would be 236 which 
includes 36 disabled spaces together with space for 190 pedal cycle and 10 motor cycles. 

As a result of these proposals being implemented, the Minchenden campus would be vacated. 
However no proposals have been submitted regarding the future of this site which contains the 
Grade II listed Southgate House. 

It must be noted that the application is in outline and only contains details of layout and access. 
Detailed plans of scale, appearance and landscaping are reserved for consideration at a later 
stage but the application does contain information pertaining to the amount of development in 
terms of massing and floor area to establish the maximum envelope envisaged. 

Relevant Planning History 

There is no planning history pertaining to the consolidation of the College onto the main campus. 

However, in response to a request for a Screening Opinion under the provisions of the Town and 
Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 1999 (as amended), it was 
confirmed that the proposed development does not require an Environmental Impact Assessment 
to be submitted. This is because the proposal would not give rise to significant effects on the 
wider environment of the Borough having regard to the criteria set out in Paragraph 28 of Circular 
2/99 (ref: SO/08/0007). 

Page 18



Consultations

Public

Consultation letters have been sent to neighbouring residential properties and commercial 
premises.  In addition, notice was published in the local press and displayed at the site. In 
response, 112 letters of objection have been received raising all or some of the following points; 

Overdevelopment 

- too much development is proposed for this limited site; 
- Minchenden site should be included when considering future expansion of College; 
- Height too great and extend  high rise buildings further down road away from Southgate 

Circus;
- Proposal increases dominance of development and would be too close to the High Street; 
- Development out of keeping with local environment; 
- Photomontages show that the proposed buildings remain inappropriate and overbearing 

and disproportionate size for the High Street and in particular relation to the street scene 

Appearance

- Proposed design is not of the quality we should be aspiring to; 
- Development needs to be redesigned to create a building which better integrates with its 

surroundings; 
- development would have a bland, solid façade onto the High Street frontage which needs 

to be improved by architectural variation 
- massing of development is too great and there should be a variation in roof treatment 
- development would be massively  overbearing structure and would  have a looming 

nature from almost anywhere in the vicinity; 
- the design of the development does nothing to improve the environment in terms of visual 

amenity
- design should be subject to full CABE review 

Relationship to Listed Buildings 

- the proposed development does not have regard to the desirability of  preserving the 
setting of a listed building 

- the listed buildings along High Street will be dwarfed by proposals 
- modifications to listed building do nothing to lessen the effect of the disproportionately 

large and overwhelming buildings 
- height of public building will be higher than my two storey house: it is equivalent to 3-

4storeys
- two storey “library” building is equivalent to a three storey house even without the air 

conditioning units which add another floor; 
- the proposed 4 storey teaching block behind the listed buildings is double the size of a 

three storey house; 
- it would be wrong for the new development to overpower and dominate its surroundings 
- Library block needs to be reduced to single storey; 
- There is no response to the fact that the northern buildings due to their sheer size, scale 

and mass, will loom over the listed buildings affecting their character; 
- Amended plans do not address English Heritage’s concerns or those of residents 
- Amended plans do not adequately respond to the listed building or the nearby setting of 

the Southgate Circus Conservation Area 

Page 19



Relationship to Residential Amenity 

- Development of such height will lead to overlooking and a loss of privacy; 
- Development will result in direct overlooking of residential properties 
- Resultant scale and mass of building is underestimated; 
- No.117 will suffer a huge loss of privacy and amenity; 
- Daylight and sunlight analysis is inaccurate  
- Level to which neighbouring properties are overlooked is currently minimal and not 

invasive: this will change 
- Existing building heights should be maintained to prevent any increase in overlooking 
- no mention of measures required to secure area between 117 and the library block at 

night and weekends: without this, there are concerns that rear of residential properties will 
be more accessible; 

- increased traffic movements along Blagdens Lane will affect enjoyment of property 
- increase noise and disturbance form access and parking close to residential boundaries; 
- development does not meet relevant planning standards and thus, harms residential 

amenity
- impact of construction on residential amenity 

Access

- proposed access arrangements are impracticable; 
- parking strategy is not sustainable and should be rejected 
- Blagdens Lane is too narrow for existing flows let alone that associated with  proposed 

increased;
- Blagdens Lane is a quiet cul de sac and will be come a traffic nightmare;  
- access via Blagdens Lane could involve over 300 cars daily; 
- existing access to car park off Blagdens Lane is not used on a regular basis despite 

claims of applicant; 
- the volume of traffic, noise and disruption will adversely affect the residents of Blagdens 

Lane especially the residential care home which needs 24 hour emergency access; 
- parking for 200 staff and students a should not be needed in an area so well served by 

public transport; 
- no parking for library 
- open air parking should not be proposed as it impact on visual and residential amenity 
- use of High Street as a main access affects amenity and could also increase vibration 

affect foundations of listed buildings 

Landscaping 

- the open green space at front of College  provides visual relief and character: its loss 
would detract from street scene. 

- open space supports setting of building and also provide natural drainage and a habitat 
for flora and fauna; 

- loosing the open space is not acceptable 
- lack of open space also harms setting and appearance of proposed development; 
- revision to create area in front of “library” block, is not sufficient; 
- trees in front of the College are not worthless and have a visual amenity value 
- more cost effective if existing trees were retained rather than enhancing proposals for 

replacement;
- trees r/o 107-117 High Street should remain as they create the necessary screen; 

Page 20



- the trees are of significant amenity value and many have significant presence including a 
Red Maple and several London Plane; 

- if so many tree are to be replaced then they should be “mature” specimens 
- development leads to a net loss of green space; 

Miscellaneous 

- Revised plans do nothing to respond to the issues raised by local people; 
- Public square is likely to attract gangs and pose a public safety threat to people walking 

down from tube station; 
- Public square is likely to attract gangs and pose a public safety threat to people walking 

down from tube station; 
- Public square is not needed 

- Although important to have a thriving community with good facilities this, surely this can 
be achieved without loss to the area, which these plans present.

- Green technology and design should alleviate the need for roof top air conditioning;
- Does the College have to be here: could it not be on a more suitable site with sufficient 

room to expand leaving the existing sites to be redeveloped for more suitable purposes;
- Future of Royal mail site should also be considered;
- Application needs to considered on planning merits and not be swayed by desires of 

College;
- Why is there no Environmental Impact Assessment.
- Impact on property value

In addition, the Enfield Society comment that  too much is being squeezed into the space 
available and does not respect important historic landscape. In particular, the height of the 
northern building beyond the new library is excessive. The development will also reduce open 
amenity space and the loss of the open space on the College frontage which is a major amenity 
within the context of the street scene, is of concern. It is the Society’s opinion that these issues 
cannot be left to the detailed application. 

The Fox Lane and District Residents Association comment that while they would like to support 
the enhancement of facilities to provide higher quality education, they are concerned on a number 
of grounds: 

- Blagdens Lane is inappropriate to deal with the traffic associated with the College 
- The use of Ashfield Parade for ingress during morning peak will conflict with  other peak 

traffic movements including that associated with local schools 
- The storey heights do not respond to existing storey heights and thus would be 

unsympathetic to the existing buildings and surrounding area 
- The proposed 4 storey block will have an overbearing effect on the listed buildings 
- The ventilation plant on the roof of the development will add further height to the buildings 

above what is described as well as noise disturbance to nearby residents 
- Unacceptable loss of existing mature trees 
- Height of development on High Street frontage is inappropriate and will not be 

sympathetic  in the street scene or act as a suitable transition to development on either 
side;’

- The public square may become or attract anti social behaviour if access is not controlled: 
this will affect residential amenity; 

In addition, David Burrowes MP comments that although he strongly supports the principle of 
development to improve the College, some of the details  shown on the submitted plans are of 
concern ( i.e. Scale of development, proposals for access and parking, loss of trees and impact 
on residential amenity). As a result, he supports the concerns of local residents in this respect. 

Page 21



It should also be noted that Royal mail raise no objection in principle to the proposals contained in 
the outline application. 

Latest Consultation 

More recently, local residents have been re-consulted on amendments to the scheme including 
the reinstatement of the access via Blagdens Lane and modifications to the siting and indicative 
appearance of the two-storey library block. In response, 6 letters of objection have been received 
which raise all or some of the following points: 

Overdevelopment 

- too much development is proposed for this limited site; 
- Minchenden site should be included when considering future expansion of College; 
- Height too great and extend  high rise buildings further down road away from Southgate 

Circus;
- Proposal increases dominance of development and would be too close to the High Street; 
- No rational for bring development forward towards High Street: development could be 

accommodated elsewhere on site 
- Development out of keeping with local environment; 

Relationship to Listed Buildings 

- the listed buildings along High Street will be dwarfed by proposals 
- modifications to listed building do nothing to lessen the effect of the disproportionately 

large and overwhelming buildings 
- height of public building will be higher than my two storey house: it is equivalent to 3-

4storeys
- two storey “library” building is equivalent to a three storey house even without the air 

conditioning units which add another floor; 
- the proposed 4 storey teaching block behind the listed buildings is double the size of a 

three storey house; 
- Library block needs to be reduced to single storey; 
- There is no response to the fact that the northern buildings due to their sheer size, scale 

and mass, will loom over the listed buildings affecting their character; 
- Amended plans do not address English Heritage’s concerns 

Relationship to Residential Amenity 

- Development of such height will lead to overlooking and a loss of privacy; 
- Development will result in direct overlooking of residential properties 
- Resultant scale and mass of building is underestimated; 
- With the loss of mature planting the development will represent an unattractive intrusion 

into the outlook of residential properties 
- no mention of measures required to secure area between 117 and the library block at 

night and weekends: without this, there are concerns that rear of residential properties will 
be more accessible; 

- increase noise and disturbance form access and parking close to residential boundaries; 

Access

- proposed access arrangements are impracticable; 

Page 22



-  Blagdens Lane is too narrow for existing flows let alone that associated with  proposed 
increased;

- Blagdens Lane will be come a traffic nightmare 
- access via Blagdens Lane could involve over 300 cars daily; 
- the volume of traffic, noise and disruption will adversely affect the residents of Blagdens 

Lane;
- parking for 200 staff and students a should not be needed in an area so well served by 

public transport; 
- development should not prejudice emergency access from Ashmole School 

Landscaping 

- the open green space at front of College  provides visual relief and character: its loss 
would detract from street scene; 

- green space should not be lost to a concrete public square 
- open space supports setting of building; 
- lack of open space also harms setting and appearance of proposed development; 
- trees in front of the College are not worthless and have a visual amenity value 
- more cost effective if existing trees were retained rather than enhancing proposals for 

replacement;
- trees r/o 107-117 High Street should remain as they create the necessary screen; 
- if so many tree are to be replaced then they should be “mature” specimens; 

Miscellaneous 

- Revised plans do nothing to respond to the issues raised by local people; 
- Square would become focus for anti social behaviour 

- Although important to have a thriving community with goof facilities this, surely this can be 
achieved without loos to the area, which these plans present.

- The College has not responded to public consultation

In addition, the Southgate District Civic Trust have commented that having seen the latest 
drawings, nothing alleviates their continued concerns about the impact on the setting of the listed 
building. The proposed green wall to the two storey “library” building is not an adequate 
replacement for the trees lost from the open grassed are at the front of the College. Moreover, 
they consider the proposal to be a substantial development creating a considerable building 
mass, which will dominate the site and not respect the curtilage of the listed building especially 
when the effect of an additional storey to accommodate air conditioning plant is added. It is also 
noted that the proposed development will project forward of the building line which will disrupt the 
street scene and the visual link between the Conservation Areas of Southgate Circus and The 
Green. The Group also highlights that the loss of the open grass area will harm the street scene 
and the visual setting of the College. In conclusion therefore, they request that the application is 
refused permission and that a more suitably revised scheme is brought forward which is more 
sympathetic to its environs. 

External

Transport for London comment that they support the development in principle subject to the 
resolution of a number of issues. These are: 

i) the provision of cycle parking in line with TfL’s standards of 1 space per 8 students 
which would require an increase from 190 spaces to 357 spaces; 

ii) a walking and bus stop audit; 

Page 23



iii) a trip generation assessment for buses 
iv) further work on the travel plan and in particular, the inclusion of separate targets for 

staff and students at the outset. 

TfL also comments that the provision of 236 parking spaces is in general conformity with the 
London Plan 

English Heritage does not formerly object but have offered general observations. It is considered 
107-117 form a group of architectural and historic interest with mature front gardens and a skyline 
setting not impacted upon by tall buildings.
They comment that the setting of the listed building is little affected by the existing college 
because the entry point and its street frontage is softened by the pleasant area of grass planted 
with semi mature trees. This is a very sympathetic setting for what would have been a rustic rural 
cottage (117) with its leafy front garden as well as those of its neighbouring. The removal of this 
landscaped area will have an effect not only the setting of 117 but also its neighbours and the 
overall historic significance. Overall, English Heritage consider that the two-storey library element 
is too large and too close to the boundary and would therefore over dominate the relationship with 
117. With regard to the four-storey element behind the listed buildings, it is considered that this is 
large enough to loom over the listed buildings and thus will have a detrimental impact 
accentuated by the loss of mature trees on that boundary 

Environment Agency raise no objection subject to a condition regarding surface water drainage 

London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority raise no objection I terms of emergency access. 

Internal

Traffic and Transportation raise no objection in principle but would require conditions to address 
the following issues: 

i) methodology for controlling ingress / egress across all access points 
ii) improved highway junction with High Street 
iii) alterations on High Street to facilitate improve right turn layout into Blagdens Lane 
iv) contribution to footway improvements 
v) reinstatement of all redundant footways 
vi) Travel Plan 
vii) Commitment to cover costs of necessary alterations to existing waiting / parking 

restriction

It is considered all these matters can be adequately covered by condition or inclusion in a legal 
agreement.

Environmental Health raise no objection in terms the proposals subject t a condition covering 
construction methodology. 

Conservation Advisory Group

In response to the original proposals, the Group made the following comments: 

a)  Four storey block: 

The building is, at least, one too many. The height of the new building should begin to respect 
the adjacent listed buildings and their scale.     

Page 24



The design premise (as stated by the applicant’s advisor during a presentation to CAG) is that 
the North block is a “book end” to the commercial sector of Southgate. This has resulted in a 
dominant building that sits uneasily with the domestic scale of the listed buildings. 

Despite the raking façade of the North Block it will still be seen, from the north and south, as 
being built to the building line of the adjacent commercial buildings. As a consequence it will 
dominate the main High Street views. The building needs to be set back to the building line of 
the listed buildings and for the end elevation to be at right angles.   

Although outline the indications are that the exterior walls to the North Block will be seen as 
extremely heavy. The applicant was guided to the recent development of Enfield College; a 
lightly clad building with a low profile that still met the design brief of creating a “presence on 
the Hertford Road whilst observing the domestic nature of the immediate neighbourhood”. 
That is not the case with this proposal. 

The overall design appears formulaic and offers no sense of place in this sensitive location. It 
does not fit in to the existing urban grain. 

b)  Two Storey Library Block 

The library is, again, one storey too high. 

The height of the library (including the area designated for plant) is circa 9.5 metres. This is 
considerably higher than the immediately adjacent listed building (No. 117 High Street); which 
is circa 5.2 metres at its highest point.  

The building crowds the boundary (vis a viz No.117 and the setting of the listed buildings) by 
virtue of its height and proximity. 

It is marooned and stranded in the middle of a circulation zone. 

c)  South Block 

This building steps down (by 2 floors) from the Main block and is seen as generally respectful 
to the listed buildings. 

d) Traffic 

The listed buildings are now surrounded on all sides by substantial traffic movement following 
the change to the main access route. 

The Group consider that an appropriate alternative would be for the development to embrace the 
library within the footprint and floor space of the North block. This will facilitate the provision of a 
green space where the library is currently proposed. The setting of the listed buildings will be 
dramatically improved.   

This is a compromise solution that leaves the North block building height as shown; however the 
end elevation of the building to be at right angles and on the building line of the listed buildings. 
Move the access road closer to the North block. This will provide the space for a green sward 
setting to the listed buildings. 

Page 25



Maximise the rear entrance (Ashfield Parade) as the primary access route for the main car park. 
Library parking and disabled bays only accessed from the High Street. Traffic flow (coupled with 
the previous point) around the listed buildings thus dramatically reduced. 

Comments on Latest Plans 

At their meeting on 6th October when the latest iteration of the plans were assessed, the Group 
commented that the revision were a poor response to their earlier concerns. In particular, the 
reinstatement of the Blagdens Lane access created an island with listed buildings surrounded by 
roads. There was also concern expressed regarding the poor location of the library and the north 
building jutting out: it was felt the library should be set further back and integrated into the north 
block thus retaining the open character to the setting of the listed building. The Group also that 
the level of architectural design adversely impacted on the setting of the listed building with 
reference to the visual impact of the proposed roof level plant and equipment. 

Relevant Policies 

London Plan

3A.17   Addressing the needs of London’s diverse population 
3A.18  Protection and enhancement of social infrastructure and community facilities 
3A.25  Support needs of higher and further education establishments  
3C.1  Integrating transport and development 
3C.2  Matching development to transport capacity 
3C.3  Sustainable transport in London 
3C.21  Improving Conditions for Cycling 
3C.23  Parking Strategy 
3D.1   Supporting town centres 
4A.1  Tackling Climate Change 
4A.3  Sustainable Design and Construction 
4A.4  Energy Assessment 
4A.5  Provision of Heating and Cooling Networks 
4A.6  Decentralised Heating 
4A.7  Renewable Energy 
4A.9  Adaptation to Climate Change 
4A.11  Living Roofs and Walls 
4A.14  Sustainable Drainage 
4B.1  Design Principles for a Compact City 
4B.2  Promoting World Class Architecture and Design 
4B.3  Enhancing the Quality of the Public Realm 
4B.5  Creating an Inclusive Environment 
4B.8    Respect local context and communities 
4B.12  Heritage Conservation 
Annex 4 Parking standards 

Unitary Development Plan

(I)GD1  regard to surroundings and integration into local community 
(I)GD2  quality of life and visual amenity 
(II)GD2 developments are appropriate located 
(II)GD3 character and design 
(II)GD5 landscaping 
(II)GD6 traffic generation 

Page 26



(II)GD8 site access and servicing 
(II)GD10 integration of development 
(II)GD11 access for people with disabilities 
(II)GD13 to resist any increase in flood risk  
(I)CS1  community services 
(II)CS1 facilitate the full range of services appropriate to the needs of the Borough 
(II)CS2  community facilities to have regard to Council’s environmental policies 
(I)T7  to improve facilities and conditions for cyclists  
(II)T13  creation of new access onto the public highway 
(II)T14  contribution to off site highway improvements as necessary 
(II)T16  adequate access for pedestrians and people with disabilities 
(II)T19  priority to the needs and safety of cyclists 
(II)T21  cycle parking provision in all developments 
(II)T31  promote opening of private car parks to public 
(II)T32  car parking to take account of needs of people with disabilities 
(I)C1 sites, buildings and landscape features of archaeological, architectural or historic 

interests together with their character and setting are preserved or enhanced. 
(II)O10 to have regard to the contribution of open space to the physical structure, 

character and quality of life 
(II)H8  privacy and overlooking 

Local Development Framework - Core Strategy Preferred Options

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the Council to replace the UDP with a 
Local Development Framework (LDF). The LDF Core Strategy will set out the spatial vision and 
strategic objectives for the Borough. The Core Strategy is progressing through its adoption 
process. As this continues the weight given to it will grow and the relevant objectives are reported 
to demonstrate the degree to which the proposals are consistent with the emerging policy 
direction.

SO1 Sustainability and Climate Change 
SO3 Protect and enhance Enfield's environmental quality; 
SO7 Distinctive, balanced, and healthier communities 
SO11 Safer and stronger communities 

Other Material Considerations

PPS1  Delivering Sustainable Development 
PPG13  Transport 
PPG15  Planning and the Historic Environment 
PPS25  Development and Flood Risk 

Analysis 

Principle of Use

The consolidation of the College onto the Main High Street campus would be in keeping with the 
existing use of the site albeit, the intensity of the use would be greater. Nevertheless, the 
development represents an opportunity to secure significant improvement to the existing 
education facilities available as well as maintaining the profile of the College, consistent with the 
community objectives of Policies (II)CS1 and (II)CS2 together with Policy 3A.25 of the London 
Plan. In principle therefore, the use of the site for the purposes proposed is considered 
acceptable. 

Page 27



Future of Minchenden Campus

The consolidation of the College onto the Main Campus on the western side of High Street, would 
result in the Minchenden campus being ultimately vacated. At that time, it is envisaged that this 
site will be disposed of on the open market although at this stage, no consideration has been 
given to its future use or what might prove acceptable. Consequently, the future of this site does 
not form part of the proposed development and cannot be taken into account as part of the 
consideration of the proposed development’s acceptability. 

The College however recognises that any future use and / or development of the Minchenden 
campus will be constrained by the presence of the Grade II listed Southgate House: any 
development would need to demonstrate that the special character and interest of the building is 
preserved. Moreover, it is also recognised that the access arrangements for the proposed 
development will limit the potential use of the existing access to Minchenden site in any future 
use.

Effect on Character and Appearance of Surrounding Area

It is recognised that the proposal represents a significant intensification in the amount of 
development within the present High Street campus. Much of this is evident in the increased 
mass of the resultant buildings and the projection of the development towards the High Street 
frontage. However, this increase does not in itself, make it unacceptable.  

The degree to which the increased mass and height of development is acceptable must be 
determined by the visual presence of the resultant development in the surrounding area and the 
spatial relationship to neighbouring properties (the specific relationship to the listed buildings is 
considered separately). The surrounding area is mixed in terms of its composition and built form. 
Situated to the south of Southgate town centre were building heights are typically 3-4 storey 
around Ashfield Parade: a form which is also evident and extends southwards along the High 
Street towards the College site. However, this must be balanced by the more domestic form of 
the listed buildings and the residential development along Blagdens Lane. Here residential 
development heights are predominantly  2 –3 storey.  

In terms of its appearance in the street scene, the majority of the proposed mass would be 
located toward the centre of the site set back from the High Street and Blagdens Lane frontages 
(59 m and 23 m respectively). Taking this spacing and the existing height of the 6-storey block 
which would be retained, it is considered that the building height would not be inappropriate within 
this context. It is also argued that the form proposed would appear contiguous with the greater 
heights evident around the town centre.  

However, more prominent and having a more direct bearing on the character and appearance of 
the locality will be the two blocks projecting forward towards the High Street frontage. At 4 and 2 
storey, these elements would have a significant presence within the street scheme and in fact, 
the 4 storey block positioned along the northern boundary with the post office building, has been 
specifically designed to do so and will act as a focal point for people attending the site and 
approaching from Southgate Circus (a point that can be seen in the indicative street elevations). 
Thus, when viewed along High Street frontage and having regard to the buildings on either side 
of this frontage, it is considered the proposed massing would not be inappropriate or harm the 
street scene or the character of the area. 

In arriving at this conclusion, consideration has been given to the loss of the open area which 
contains a number of semi mature trees and presently contributes to the College frontage and its 

Page 28



presence within the street scene. None of the trees have an amenity value sufficient to warrant 
imposing a tree preservation order but the loss of this area will represent a significant change. 
Notwithstanding this, in order to optimise the development of the site and  integrate the built form 
of the college better into the street scene, the design allows for the creation of a public square to 
establish an accessible  focal point within the community unlike the current space which is fenced 
off from the street. On balance therefore, it is considered the loss of the open area is not sufficient 
ground to warrant refusal 

Effect on Setting of Listed Buildings

A key consideration is the relationship of the proposed development to the setting of the listed 
building and local planning authorities must give special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the setting of the building.  

PPG15 advises that “The setting is often an essential part of the building's character, especially if 
a garden or grounds have been laid out to complement its design or function. Also, the economic 
viability as well as the character of historic buildings may suffer and they can be robbed of much 
of their interest, and of the contribution they make to townscape or the countryside, if they 
become isolated from their surroundings, e.g. by new traffic routes, car parks, or other 
development”. 

In addition, PPG15 also states that “the setting of a building may be limited to obviously ancillary 
land, but may often include land some distance from it. Even where a building has no ancillary 
land - for example in a crowded urban street - the setting may encompass a number of other 
properties. The setting of individual listed buildings very often owes its character to the harmony 
produced by a particular grouping of buildings (not necessarily all of great individual merit) and to 
the quality of the spaces created between them. Such areas require careful appraisal when 
proposals for development are under consideration, even if the redevelopment would only replace 
a building, which is neither itself listed or immediately adjacent to a listed building. Where a listed 
building forms an important visual element in a street, it would probably be right to regard any 
development in the street as being within the setting of the building. A proposed high or bulky 
building might also affect the setting of a listed building some distance away, or alter views of a 
historic skyline” 

The design of new buildings therefore, intended to stand alongside historic buildings, does need 
very careful consideration. New buildings therefore need to carefully designed to respect their 
setting, follow fundamental architectural principles of scale, height, massing and alignment, and 
use appropriate materials. It must be noted that at this stage, in terms of this outline application, 
we are only considering details of siting and massing with detailed deign to brought forward for 
assessment at a later stage. Moreover,  PPG15 is clear that new buildings do not have to copy 
their older neighbours in detail: some of the most interesting streets in our towns and villages 
include a variety of building styles, materials, and forms of construction, of many different periods, 
but together forming a harmonious group. 

In this case, the listed buildings are Nos 107-117 High Street and comprise a row of Grade II 
listed two and three storey buildings. The buildings are charactorised by their appearance which 
includes sash windows and although designated  in a piecemeal fashion, are listed on the basis 
of their group value. However, with particular reference to No 117 which lies adjacent to the 
College boundary, the listing description describes the property as an early  19th century weather 
boarded cottage now possibly extended to the side but probably once a stable block.  

In response to the originally submitted plans, many residents including CAG, English Heritage 
and the Southgate Civic District Trust highlighted the inadequacies of the relationship between 

Page 29



the proposed development and the listed building, in particular, the fact that the  proposed 
development did not respect the building line of the listed buildings 

Taking the above factors into account, concerns were expressed regarding the initial proposal 
and discussions have resulted in revisions to the scheme to improve the relationship. The 
revisions include: 

i) reduction in height of the southern “library” block from three storey to two storey; 
ii) setting the front of the “library” block back in line with the building line of the listed 

buildings
iii) separation of the “library” bloc from the main College building apart from a first floor 

pedestrian link; 
iv) an increase in the separation of the block from the boundary with the listed building; 
v) a commitment to setting any roof top plat and equipment in from the edge of the 

buildings;

The decision not to proceed with a main access from High Street along the boundary of No 117 
will also have benefits for the setting and future amenity of this neighbouring listed building. 

There is now a distance of 9 metres proposed between the flank wall of the “two storey library” 
block and the boundary of No 117. In addition, the setting back of this block enables a general 
space to be provided in front which softens the relationship with the character of the listed 
building identified by English Heritage. Weight is also given to the variety of building styles which 
contribute to the character and appearance of the street scene none of which apart from the listed 
buildings, are of any architectural merit 

Weight is also given to the comments of the Mayor for London who advises that the separation 
and lower built form proposed appear appropriate. Taking these factors into account, it is 
considered the proposed siting and massing would appropriately respond to the setting of the 
listed buildings and thus it is considered there is no harm to its special architectural and historic 
interest.

A further consideration relates to the effect of the 4-storey block which would be sited behind the 
listed buildings. This block would replace a group of 2 – 3 storey buildings and although slightly 
closer to the rear boundary, would be some 45 metres from the actual listed buildings with 
between 20 and 32 metres to the curtilage. Concern has been raised regarding the “looming” 
effect this block would have on the character of the listed building accentuated by the loss of 
mature planting along the common boundary. In response to these concerns, although there is no 
scope to reposition this element having regard to the internal layout requirements and constraints 
placed on the scheme by the Piccadilly underground line which traverses the rear of the college 
site, revised plans have been received which show the retention of the mature trees along this 
boundary, together with additional planting, to assist in softening this relationship. On balance, 
this arrangement is considered acceptable and given the overall distance, it is considered the 4-
storey block would not harm the setting  of the listed building. 

Relationship to Southgate Circus Conservation Area

The College site does not lie within the Conservation Area. The Southgate Circus Conservation 
Area lies to the north and is focused around the listed Underground Station: the nearest part of 
the Conservation Area being some 60 metres away at the northern end of Ashfield Parade. 
Although the proposed development will have a visual presence within the wider area and on the 
High Street, due to the distance from the Conservation Area, it is considered the proposal will not 
harm the special character or appearance of this area. 

Page 30



Effect on Amenities of Neighbouring Residential Properties

The key relationship is that to 117 High Street and the effect of the “library” block on its level of 
amenity.

The “library” block would be 9 metres in height and sited 9 metres away from the residential 
boundary. Situated to the north of the property, the building would not lead to any overshadowing. 
However, the dwelling does have windows in the rear and side elevations. In response to 
concerns regarding the submitted Daylight assessment, the Council commissioned its own 
independent assessment to assist in identifying the effects of the proposed development on the 
level of light enjoyed by the property. This report concludes that  

a) Although the loss of light to the living dining room will be significant especially during 
winters months when the trees will not be in leaf and their camouflaging effect is reduced, 
this needs to be balanced against the internalising effect on the living room by the addition 
of the dining room extension with the BRE guidelines advising of the difficulties in the 
practicality of applying the Daylight Distribution test in spaces of greater depth than 5 
metres;

b) Although there would not be a loss of light to the first floor rear bedroom, there would be a 
reduction in winter sunlight which would be material against BRE standards; 

c) There would be no material impact on the kitchen. 

With reference to these conclusions therefore, a degree of impact is indicated. This must be 
offset against the BRE guidelines, which limits the robustness of evidencing effectively, harm 
should the matter be determined on this ground. Mindful of these circumstances on balance, it is 
considered that the level of impact on the light to his property is not sufficient to warrant refusal of 
the application 

In addition, it is also noted that concerns have been raised regarding the creation of a secondary 
access along the residential boundary in terms of activity, noise and general disturbance as will 
as security implications from increased accessibility. In terms of outlook although the actual 
design of the block is not for consideration at this stage, indicative elevations have confirmed the 
inclusion of a green wall to the southern elevation of the library block. It is considered that this 
feature would assist in softening the visual presence of the block and its inclusion in the final 
scheme design will be conditioned accordingly.  

The impact on the levels of amenity enjoyed by the occupiers of this property are acknowledged 
and have strongly influenced the opinion that use of this route as a main access to serve the 
College (in the absence of the alternative route via Blagdens Lane).  Nevertheless, the levels of 
vehicular movement associated with this secondary access which would serve the library and 
disabled parking spaces is much less and would not, it is considered, affect the amenities of this 
property. Moreover, in response to the security concerns, the College have concern that this 
route would be a controlled gated access: it is recommended that a condition is imposed to 
secure this point and on this basis, this arrangement is considered acceptable.  

There are a number of properties situated along the southern side of Blagdens Lane which face 
the College. Presently, there is a strong landscape buffer comprising a range of mature trees 
which provide an effective screen along this boundary. This will be largely retained and 
enhanced. However, the 4-storey block rising to 17 metres in height will be a feature in the 
outlook from these properties. Whilst this relationship has been assessed, it is considered that the 
overall separation of 41 metres at its closest with the retained tree screen in-between is sufficient 

Page 31



to mitigate the presence of this new building and avoid any undue harm to the amenities of these 
properties.

Concern has also be raised regarding the increased vehicular use of Blagdens Lane as an 
access in terms of the increased noise, disturbance and general activity. Due to the positioning of 
the access, this would be of particular relevance to 107 High Street, Sisu (14 Blagdens Lane) and 
Nos 1-12 Bramford Court which occupies the plot on the corner of Blagdens Lane and High 
Street.

For the majority of Blagdens Lane, the development would result in a reduction in the level of 
vehicles using the entire length due to the removal of the existing access at the western end of 
road. However, it is acknowledged that there would be a significant increase in vehicle 
movements along the section between the new access and the High Street. As a result, it is likely 
there would be an increase in activity and general disturbance to the properties identified. In 
seeking to determine whether this is acceptable, it is considered that a number of factors must be 
taken into account: 

a) the number of vehicles; 
b) the removal of the existing access to the parking area at the western end of Blagdens 

Lane
c) the status / condition of the highway 
d) existing residential character; 
e) any alternative arrangements   

It is envisaged the use of Blagdens Lane as an access would involve over 100 additional vehicle 
movements. Blagdens Lane is also adopted highway and at 5.2 metres wide, is of sufficient width  
in capacity terms to handle the traffic flows. The removal of the existing access will also reduce 
flow over the entire length. Nevertheless, the more intensive use of the eastern section has the 
potential to cause greater disturbance. What must be set against this is the fact that amenity 
levels will already be influenced by the noise associated with the traffic flows along High Street. 
Within the context of this ambient background level and the pattern of movement across the day, 
it is considered the effect of the increased traffic movements would not harm the amenities of 
these properties. In arriving at this conclusion, I am also mindful of the fact that if Blagdens Lane 
is not suitable to serve the College as an access route, there may be no alternative access route 
to support the consolidation of the College and improvement of the facilities on offer. As a result, 
and on balance, no objection is raised on this ground. 

MV Workshop Block 

The workshop block is situated in the southwestern corner of the site adjacent to the playing 
fields of Ashmole School which are to the south and west of this building. It would have a footprint 
of 53 x 41 metres and a part single storey/ part 2 storey building with a maximum height of 15 
metres.

Revised plans have increased the separation of this building to the boundary and increased the 
opportunity to retain existing trees and provide additional planting. Consequently, it is considered 
the building will have an acceptable setting and visual relationship to the school. Furthermore, it is 
also considered there is sufficient separation at 30 metres to safeguard the amenities of the 
nearest residential property on Blagdens Lane: Nos 2 & 4 Rockwood Lodge 

Adjoining the western boundary, there are also residential properties on Oxford Avenue.  Barnet 
on behalf of their residents, originally expressed concerns. The revision though have improved 

Page 32



this relationship and there is now a distance of 25 metres with boundary planting in-between 
which is sufficient to address any concerns regarding loss of light or outlook.   

Access Arrangements and Traffic Generation

Although the proposal involves a consolidation of the college, this application will not result in a 
material increase in staff and pupils attending the site. Any increased flows would be associated 
with a future redevelopment of the Minchenden campus and not for consideration as part of this 
application. No objections are therefore raised in terms of the proposal generating any 
unacceptable increase in vehicle movements. 

A key concern expressed by local residents is in respect of the proposed use of Blagdens Lane 
as an entrance to the site. 

Three alternative scenarios have been proposed regarding access arrangements: 

Option 1 – involves a new access on Blagdens Lane (and closure of existing) for ingress only, re-
siting of access on High Street for visitor and disabled parking and retention of access Ashfield 
Parade for egress.; 

Option 2 – As above but with two way access off High Street and entry from Ashfield Parade 
during the morning peak. This would enable staff approaching from the north to enter the site via 
Ashfield Parade or High Street with Blagdens Lane only dealing with staff arriving from the south 

Option 3 – no access via Blagdens Lane  with two-way access via the High Street and Ashfield 
Parade

All these alternatives have been assessed including Option 3 where access is shared between 
Ashfield Parade and High Road with no access on to Blagdens Lane which responds to local 
concerns. However, this arrangement is considered unacceptable due to the impact on the 
amenities of No. 117 High Road and the desire to minimise the amount of right turning traffic 
close to Southgate Circus which would access the College via Ashfield Parade. This latter point is 
of concern because the access road runs along the side boundary of this property and this 
scenario would result in a significant volume of traffic movement along the boundary leading to an 
unacceptable increase in noise, disturbance and pollution prejudicial to the occupier’s reasonable 
enjoyment of their property.  

If this Option is therefore unacceptable, but the sole access cannot be via Ashfield Parade, it 
must be concluded that without the use of Blagdens Lane, there is no potentially acceptable 
access arrangements to serve the consolidated College on the Main campus. 

Consequently, it falls to consider the possibility of using Blagdens Lane in some form to serve the 
College. Whilst it is recognised that there is strong concern regarding this option due to the 
increase in traffic movements, the increased pressure on its junction with the High Street and the 
impact the residential amenities of properties that front the eastern end of the Blagdens Lane, it is 
considered that as Blagdens Lane is adopted highway and constructed as such, it is a more 
appropriate access route and on balance, this offsets the disturbance associated with the 
increased traffic experienced by the residents and in particular, the occupiers of No.107 High 
Street, 1-12 Bramfield Court and Sisu  14 Blagdens Lane. 

Notwithstanding the above, it is recognised that the existing access via Ashfield Parade is not 
wholly satisfactory. However, the ability to secure direct improvement is limited as the land is not 
adopted nor does the College own it. Whist the access is currently useable, maintenance is not 

Page 33



assured and thus could in future limit its use. There is the aim  to mange the use of Ashfield 
Parade access to

Therefore, subject to highway improvements to the junction of Blagdens Lane and High Street, 
and the highway around the entrances at High Street and Ashfield Parade, no objection is raised. 

Parking and Servicing Arrangements

A total of 236 parking spaces are proposed and these would be allocated for staff only. There 
would be no spaces for students. With reference to the existing situation, there are presently 272 
spaces across both sites. The proposal would therefore result in a reduction in the number of 
spaces and local residents have raised concerns regarding the adequacy of parking to serve the 
college highlighting on street parking with the attendant issues of congestion and safety. 
However, it must be noted that the College is situated within the Southgate CPZ which already 
strictly  limits times when parking can occur. In addition, the area has a PTAL score of 4 which 
means that the college has a good level of accessibility to a range of public transport options: 
primarily in the underground and bus connections at Southgate Circus. Mindful of such 
circumstances, weight must also be given to the thrust of national planning policy in the form of 
PPG13 which aims to reduce parking provision for developments and encourage the use of public 
transport in such accessible locations. In pursuit of this, it must be noted that provision is also to 
be made for 120 cycle and motorcycle parking spaces with a travel plan also required to further 
support the greater use of non car modes. The Travel Plan is intended to have robust targets to 
seek to further limit journey to work by staff in the future. Consequently, it is considered the level 
of parking proposed is adequate and will not give rise to conditions prejudicial to the free flow and 
safety of vehicles using the adjoining highways. 

Servicing to the site will continue via Ashfield Parade. Although the approach to vehicle 
movement around the site would see Ashfield Parade as mainly an exit, the two way use is 
acceptable given the limited number of service vehicles involves. This approach is also supported 
by the fact that most of the servicing facilities are located close to this entrance and this 
arrangement would also avoid larger commercial vehicles having to use Blagdens Lane.  

Community Use

The College has an important role in meeting the educational needs of the Borough and the wider 
north London area. 

It should also be noted that the Mayor recognises that the re-provision of the College and public 
library and the introduction of more public uses such as the restaurant and hair / beauty salons 
are welcomed  and the mix of uses should provide benefit to the wider community and create a 
lively addition to the Southgate area. 

Sustainability

The sustainability measures identified in the Sustainability Statement including rainwater 
harvesting, the inclusion of a green wall, sustainable urban drainage systems and use of 
sustainable sources of timber will be secured through condition 

With regard to energy consumption, a number of energy efficient design measures are proposed 
which the GLA envisage will save around 10-20% beyond Building Regulations 2006 min 
requirements. This includes the infrastructure to link into an external district-heating scheme. 
However , it is difficult to specific in respect of this issue given the outline nature of the proposals 
at this stage. Accordingly, it is proposed to impose a number of conditions including; 

Page 34



a) a requirement to undertake detailed modelling to confirm proposed demand reduction / 
energy efficient measures with achieve the identified carbon reduction savings.  

b) The provision of infrastructure regarding the connection with an external district heating 
system; 

c) A requirement to increase solar collectors to increase contribution to reduced carbon 
emissions;

d) A requirement to complete testing on the availability  ground source heat pump system; 
e) A requirement to install suitable risers to support future installation of pv modules  

S106 Agreement

A S106 agreement will be required as part of any recommendation to grant planning permission. 
The Heads of Terms of any such agreement would be as follows: 

i) Off Site Highway Works 
ii) Community Access to Sports Facilities 
iii) Community Access to Parking Area to support adjoining town centre 
iv) Commitment to support Construction Web initiative 
v) Preparation, implementation and monitoring of travel plan 

Conclusion

In the light of the above, it is recommended the planning permission be approved for the following 
reasons:

1 The proposed development would support the educational facilities available to residents 
of the Borough and thus, is consistent with the ccommunity objectives of Policies (II)CS1 and 
(II)CS2 together with Policy 3A.25 of the London Plan. 

2 The proposed development including the loss of the open space on the High Street 
frontage would not detract from the character and appearance or the visual amenities of the 
surrounding area having regard to Policies (I)GD1, (I)GD2 and (II)GD3 of the Unitary 
Development Plan and Policies 4B.8 of the London Plan (2008), as well as the objectives of 
PPS1 and PPS3. 

3 The proposed development would not unduly affect the amenities of adjoining or nearby 
residential properties having regard to Policies (I)GD1 and (I)GD2 of the Unitary Development 
Plan, as well as the objectives of PPS1 and PPS3. 

4 The proposed development due to its siting and mass, would not harm the setting of the 
adjacent listed buildings or the character of the nearby Conservation Area having regard to 
Policies (I)C1 and (II)C30 of the Unitary Development Plan, as well as the objectives of PPG15. 

5 The proposed development having regard to the proposed access arrangements and the 
use of Blagdens Lane, would not give rise to unacceptable on street parking, congestion or 
highway safety issues, having regard to Policies (II)GD6, (II)GD8 and (II)T13 as of the Unitary 
Development Plan, Policy 3C.23 of the London Plan (2008), as well as the objectives of PPG13. 

Page 35



Page 36



N
e
w

 B
lo

c
k

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 M

a
in

 B
lo

c
k

N
E

W
 L

IB
R

A
R

Y
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 M
A

IN
 B

L
O

C
K

N
E

W
 B

L
O

C
K

N
E

W
 L

IB
R

A
R

Y
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
O

T
IT

L
E

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

R
E

V
D

A
T

E

S
C

A
L

E
 @

 A
1

C
H

E
C

K

R
E

V

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 E
M

A
IL

 A
D

D
R

E
S

S

K
E

Y
 P

L
A

N

T
 +

4
4
 (

0
)8

4
5
 4

5
0
 5

5
8
8

w
w

w
.g

ro
u
p
d
y
e
r.

c
o
m

D
R

A
W

N

3
1
1
3
@

g
ro

u
p
d
y
e
r.

c
o
m

D
O

 N
O

T
 S

C
A

L
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

N
o
te

s
:

A
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d

S
o
u
th

g
a
te

 C
o
lle

g
e

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 S

it
e
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
s

A
(P

A
)S

0
-3

0
1

B

C
 -

 C
  
&

  
D

 -
 D

 1
 :
 5

0
0

S
it
e
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 D

 -
 D

1

 1
 :
 5

0
0

S
it
e
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
  
C

 -
 C

2

C
C

D

D

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
C

H
E

C
K

D
R

A
W

N
T

R
B

G
0
4
.0

3
.2

0
0
9

-

R
E

V
 B

: 
A

D
J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

 T
O

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 C
O

T
T

A
G

E
S

 H
E

IG
H

T
R

E
V

 A
: 
IS

S
U

E
D

 F
O

R
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

R
E

V
 -

: 
IS

S
U

E
D

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
E

R
V

A
T

IO
N

 P
A

N
E

L

E
X

T
E

N
T

 O
F

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 C
O

T
T

A
G

E
S

E
X

T
E

N
T

 O
F

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 S
IT

E
H

IG
H

 R
O

A
D

E
X

T
E

N
T

 O
F

 N
E

W
 C

O
L
L
E

G
E

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
E

X
T

E
N

T
 O

F
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 C

O
T

T
A

G
E

S
E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 P

O
S

T
O

F
F

IC
E

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
C

H
E

C
K

D
R

A
W

N
T

R
B

G
2
0
.0

3
.2

0
0
9

A

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
C

H
E

C
K

D
R

A
W

N
T

R
B

G
2
3
.0

3
.2

0
0
9

B

S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

E
D

 I
N

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

:
A

L
L
 H

E
IG

H
T

 I
N

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

 I
N

 R
E

S
P

E
C

T
 T

O
 T

H
E

 L
IS

T
E

D
C

O
T

T
A

G
E

S
 I
S

 A
P

P
R

O
X

IM
A

T
E

 O
N

L
Y

 B
A

S
E

D
 O

N
 S

IT
E

P
H

O
T

O
G

R
A

P
H

IC
 E

V
ID

E
N

C
E

 O
N

L
Y

.

Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Application Number:  TP/09/0089   Ward:  Southgate       
Date of Registration:  23rd January 2009  
 
Contact:  Andy Higham 020 8379 3848   
 
Location:  SOUTHGATE COLLEGE, HIGH STREET, LONDON, N14 6BS 
 
Proposal:  Redevelopment to provide new education facilities, involving erection of a 
part 4, part 6-storey block, refurbishment of existing 6-storey building, the erection of 
a 2-storey block incorporating the public library and erection of a detached 2-storey 
motor vehicle workshop, together with provision of ancillary plant/infrastructure on 
roofs, associated car parking and construction of access routes via Ashfield Parade, 
Blagdens Lane and High Street in connection with consolidation of College on High 
Street site.  (Outline application - access and layout). 
  
Applicant Name & Address:  
 
Southgate College 
C/O AGENT 
  
Agent Name & Address:  
 
Ms Mary Power, Savills PLC 
20, Grosvenor Hill 
London 
W1K 3HQ 
  
RECOMMENDATION:  That Members resolve to GRANT outline planning 
permission and that subject to  
 

a) referral to the Mayor and confirmation that no objection being raised; and  
a) the completion of a S106 Agreement  to secure the items identified in the 

report 
 
the Head of Development Services be authorised to grant outline planning 
permission subject to the following conditions 
 

1. The development shall not commence until detailed drawings showing the design 
and external built form of the development, including existing and proposed levels 
as well as the materials to be used for external surfaces of buildings and other 
hard surfaced areas including footpaths, access roads and parking areas and 
road markings have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The buildings shall be constructed in accordance with the 
approved details before the development is occupied.  
 
Reason: To ensure an appearance which complies with Unitary Development 
Plan Policies. 
 

2. The development shall not commence until details of the scale of the 
development, including the height, length and width of the development, have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details before 
it is occupied.  
 

Page 41



Reason: To ensure an appearance which complies with Unitary Development 
Plan Policies. 
 

3. The development shall not commence until details of a landscaping scheme have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
landscaping scheme shall include the identification of existing planting to be 
retained, a written planting specification (including preparation of tree pits, tree 
ties, planting beds, grassed areas and details of outdoor furniture) together with a 
Maintenance Plan and the treatment of any hard surfaced amenity areas.  The 
site shall be landscaped in accordance with the approved details in the first 
planting season after completion or occupation of the development whichever is 
the sooner. Any trees or shrubs, which die, becomes severely damaged or 
diseased within five years of planting shall be replaced with new planting in 
accordance with the approved details.  
 
Reason: To provide a satisfactory appearance and ensure that the development 
does not prejudice highway safety 
 

4. The development shall not commence until details of the phasing of construction 
works have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The phasing of construction shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.  
 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and highway safety. 
 

5. Prior to any construction work including demolition details of a methodology for 
the demolition of existing buildings on the site of this element shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The demolition works shall be 
carried out in accordance with the methodology approved unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: in order to safeguard the amenities of neighbouring residential 
properties or the operation of the adjoining railway and to ensure the works do 
not prejudice air quality. 

6. The site shall be enclosed in accordance with details to be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The means of enclosure shall 
be erected in accordance with the approved detail before the development is 
occupied.  
 
Reason: To ensure satisfactory appearance and safeguard the privacy, amenity 
and safety of adjoining occupiers and the public and in the interests of highway 
safety. 
 

7. Prior to any development commencing, a travel plan shall be submitted be 
submitted to and approved by the local planning authority. The travel plan shall 
be implemented in accordance with the measures contained theerin. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development complies with Unitary Development 
Plan Policies and does not prejudice conditions of safety or traffic flow on 
adjoining highways 
 

Page 42



8. Prior to any development commencing, details of a vehicular access 
management plan shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning 
authority. The plan shall include:  
(i) the proportion of trips accessing the car park by each entrance: 
(ii) confirmation that Ashfield Parade access to be used for access to 13:00 and 
thereafter will be for egress only; 
(iii) confirmation of the High Street access is limited for visitor / library vehicles 
only; 
(iv) the proportion of service movements associated with the Ashfield Parade 
entrance and a methodology for the control of such movements. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development complies with Unitary Development 
Plan Policies and does not prejudice conditions of safety or traffic flow on 
adjoining highways. 
 

9. Details of a means of controlling vehicular and pedestrian access to the site from 
the High Street to prevent general access shall be submitted to and approved by 
the Local Planning Authority. The approved details to be installed prior to the use 
of this access commencing. 
 
Reason: in order to safeguard the residential amenities of neighbouring 
properties.  
 

10. The development shall not commence until details of the construction of any 
access roads and junctions and any other highway alterations associated with the 
development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. These works shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details before development is occupied or the use commences.  
 
Reason: To ensure that the development complies with Unitary Development 
Plan Policies and does not prejudice conditions of safety or traffic flow on 
adjoining highways. 
 

11. Prior to the occupation of any part of the development hereby approved, a freight 
strategy, construction logistics and a delivery and servicing plan shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The approved details 
shall be adhered to at all times thereafter. 
 
Reason: in order to promote sustainable construction and operational practices in 
the interests of the wider built and natural environment and to comply with the 
requirement of adopted Council policy 
 

12. The parking areas forming part of the development shall only be used for the 
parking of private motor vehicles and shall not be used for any other purpose.  
 
Reason: To ensure that the development complies with Unitary Development 
Plan Policies and to prevent the introduction of activity which would be 
detrimental to amenity. 
 

13. That all existing hedgerows and trees to be retained shall for the duration of the 
development works be protected by means of fencing to a minimum height of 
1.2m and erected to a distance of 5 m from the nearest vegetation and within 

Page 43



which no activities associated with building operations including storage of 
machinery and materials shall take place; details of the protective fencing shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to 
commencement of works and shall be erected and retained until the completion 
of works  
 
Reason: To ensure that all trees and hedgerows which constitute and important 
visual amenity, are not damaged or adversely affected by ground compaction or 
other activities associated with building operations 
 

14. The development shall not commence until details of refuse storage facilities 
including facilities for the recycling of waste to be provided within the 
development, in accordance with the London Borough of Enfield - Waste and 
Recycling Planning Storage Guidance ENV 08/162, have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The facilities shall be 
provided in accordance with the approved details before the development is 
occupied or use commences.  
 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and the recycling of waste materials in 
support of the Boroughs waste reduction targets. 
 

15. Details of the specification and appearance of any fume extraction and/or 
ventilation plant required in connection with development shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plant shall be 
installed in accordance with the approved details before the use commences.  
 
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance and safeguard amenity. 
 

16. The plant and equipment to be situated on the roof of the development hereby 
approved shall be sited a minimum of 1.5 metres in from the edge of the roof and 
screened in accordance with details to be submitted to and approved by the local 
planning authority. The screening to be provided in accordance with this 
approved detail prior to the use of the extract ventilation / air conditioning plant 
commencing. 
 
Reason: in order to safeguard the visual amenities of neighbouring residential 
properties and the appearance of the development 
 

17. Details of the sting, design and specification of the 120 bicycle and motor cycle 
parking shall be submitted to and approved by the Council prior to any 
development commencing on site. The approved facilities shall be provided 
before the final occupation of the development and thereafter retained for such 
purpose. 
 
Reason: in the interests of promoting the non car accessibility of the site 
 

18. That development shall not commence on site until a construction methodology 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The construction methodology shall contain: (i) photographic condition survey of 
the roads and footways leading to the site of construction including Blagdens 
Lane, (ii) details of construction access and vehicle routing to the site, (iii) details 
of measures to safeguard existing properties adjoining the access to the site of 

Page 44



construction, (iv) arrangements for vehicle servicing and turning areas, (v) 
arrangements for the parking of contractors vehicles, (vi) arrangements for wheel 
cleaning, (vii) arrangements for the storage of materials (viii) arrangements for 
any on site officer / ancillary accommodation and (ix) hours of work. The 
development shall then be undertaken in accordance with the approved 
construction methodology unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure the implementation of the development does not lead to 
damage to the existing roads and to minimise disruption to neighbouring 
properties. 
 

19. During demolition and construction activities, details of noise mitigation strategy 
shall be submitted for approval. The mitigation strategy to include the erection of 
a continuous solid hoarding around the site to acoustically screen low level noise 
sources and where possible, the use of silenced plant and equipment. The 
approved mitigation strategy shall be adhered to at all times. 
 
Reason: in the interests of safeguarding residential amenity 
 

20. No clear glazing shall be proposed in the first floor southern elevation of the 
'library' block.  
 
Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the occupiers of adjoining properties. 
 

21. No plant, machinery, goods, products or waste material shall be deposited or 
stored on any open part of the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and the appearance of the site. 
 

22. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the measures identified 
in the sustainability assessment including the provision of rainwater harvesting, 
measures to reduce water consumption, measures to maximise natural 
ventilation and daylight, the use of low energy appliances and the use of 
sustainable sources of timber during construction. Before the development is first 
occupied, the developer shall submit to the Local Planning Authority a statement 
confirming that the development hereby approved has been so carried out. 
 
Reason: in order to promote sustainable construction practices in the interests of 
the wider built and natural environment and to comply with the requirement of 
adopted Council policy. 
 

23. Prior to any development commencing, a methodology shall be submitted for 
approval detailing measures to minimising of construction waste including the 
exportation of any excavated materials and top soil. The approved methodology 
shall be adhered to at all times during construction. 
 
Reason: in order to promote sustainable construction practices in the interests of 
the wider built and natural environment and to comply with the requirement of 
adopted Council policy. 
 

Page 45



24. Details of the green wall proposed to the southern flank wall of the 'library' block 
including proposals for its maintenance shall be submitted to and approved by the 
local planning authority. The green wall shall be provided prior tot eh occupation 
of this block and thereafter maintained in accordance with the agreed 
specification. 
 
Reason: in order to promote sustainable construction practices in the interests of 
the wider built and natural environment and to comply with the requirement of 
adopted Council policy and in the interests of safeguarding the visual amenities of 
neighbouring properties. 
 

25. Details of necessary infrastructure to support the future connection to an external 
district heating system including details of the heat network / hot water circuit that 
would be used to supply the hot water requirements of the network and the 
location of the heat generation plant, shall be submitted to and approved by the 
local planning authority.  
 
Reason: in order to promote sustainable construction practices in the interests of 
the wider built and natural environment and to comply with the requirement of 
adopted Council policy 
 

26. Details of Energy Efficient Design Measures for the proposed development or any 
part of the development shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority prior to the commencement of development. These details 
shall include building regulations compliant modelling work which demonstrating 
the 2006 Building Regulations requirements in relation to energy efficiency are 
exceeded by 10% with the use of demand reduction or energy efficient measures. 
 
Reason: in order to promote sustainable construction practices in the interests of 
the wider built and natural environment and to comply with the requirement of 
adopted Council policy 
 

27. Development shall not commence until a surface water drainage scheme or the 
site based on sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of hydrological 
and hydro geological context of the development has been submitted to and 
approved by the local planning authority. The development shall be implemented 
in accordance with these details before the development is occupied. 
Reason: to prevent increased risk of flooding, to improve and protect water 
quality, improve habitat and amenity and ensure future maintenance of these. 
 

28. The energy efficiency design measures identified shall be implemented in 
accordance with the principles described and thereafter maintained unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority 
 
Reason: in order to promote sustainable construction practices in the interests of 
the wider built and natural environment and to comply with the requirement of 
adopted Council policy 

29. Application for the approval of any reserved matters must be made to the Local 
Planning Authority not later than (i) the expiration of three years beginning with 
the date of this decision notice and (ii) the development to which this permission 
relates must be begun not later than the expiration of two years from the final 
approval of the last reserve matter to be approved.  

Page 46



 
Reason: To comply with S.51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004. 
 

 

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
	4 MINUTES OF PLANNING PANEL 26 FEBRUARY 2009
	5 REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION  (REPORT NO. 123) : APPLICATION REFERENCE TP/09/0089 - SOUTHGATE COLLEGE, HIGH STREET, LONDON, N14 6BS
	AGENDA REPORT 12 NOV 09
	Conditions


